1972

David R. Williams Dba Industrial Communications v. Public Service Commission of Utah, Hal S. Bennett Frank Warner And Eugene S. Lambert, Commissioners of the Public Service Commission of Utah : Brief of Plaintiff

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

Plaintiff applied to the Utah Public Service Commission for a certificate of convenience and necessity which would allow him to operate a public mobile radio-telephone communications system in the central area of Utah.

DISPOSITION IN PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Public Service Commission, by commissioners Hal S. Bennett, Donald Hacking and John T. Vernieu,

on February 3, 1972 denied plaintiff's application. Plaintiff made application for rehearing on February 22, 1972. The Public Service Commission, by commissioners Hal S. Bennett, Frank Warner and Eugene S. Lambert denied plaintiff's application for rehearing on March 10, 1972.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff asks to have this Court reverse the Public Service Commission's Conclusion in its Report and Order on the grounds that the same is unlawful because it is arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable, does not follow or properly interpret the applicable law, is contrary to the Commission's own Findings of Fact, and ignores certain other essential and material facts which are adverse to said Conclusion.

Plaintiff also seeks a review of the lawfulness of the Commission's (1) admitted reliance on a non-expert advisor for technical and legal advice in relation to mobile radio service, and (2) the propriety of such reliance when the Commission knew said advisor had business and personal interests which placed him in a conflict of interest position in opposition to plaintiff's application. Plaintiff contends that said reliance (1) negates the presumption of expertness afforded the Commission's Findings, and (2) is a violation of plaintiff's constitutional right to due process of law under the constitutions of the United States and the State of Utah.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The following Facts have been divided into numbered paragraphs to facilitate referencing.

1. Plaintiff applied for a certificate of convenience and necessity from the Utah Public Service Commission (Commission) to furnish two-way mobile radio telephone service as a radio common carrier (RCC) to the public in the central area of Utah.

2. The central area of Utah has a population in excess of 800,000 people (R-873 (Exhibit 66) — Counties of Salt Lake, Weber, Davis and Utah).

3. Mobile Radio Telephone Service, Inc. (Mobile) is the only non wire-line RCC in the central area of Utah (Finding No. 4) and has been operating under a certificate from the Commission since 1962 (Finding No. 14).

4. The president of Mobile testified that it has 63 two-way mobile radio telephone units in service (R-103) on 2 VHF (Very High Frequency) channels granted by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) (R-20).

5. The FCC has presently authorized 21 two-way mobile radio channels (7 VHF (R-40; See Finding No. 13) and 14 UHF (Ultra High Frequency) (R-509)) for use by non wire-line RCC's in the central area of Utah. The granting of such channels as well as all operational aspects of mobile radio communications are determined and regulated by the FCC.

6. Ever since 1966 by its own Exhibit Mobile has had approximately the same number of two-way mobile radio telephones in service on its 2 VHF channels (R-826 (Exhibit 51, page B-11)).

7. Mobile admitted that its 2 VHF channels have been crowded for several years (R-37, See R-684 (Exhibit 24); See R-88-90) but that it did not apply to the FCC for additional channels until October 28, 1969 and then it applied for 3 UHF channels (R-689 (Exhibit 30)). Two of the said UHF channels were granted by the FCC prior to June, 1970, but had not been placed in service by Mobile at the conclusion of plaintiff's hearing before the Commission in June, 1971 (Finding No. 13). VHF two-way mobile telephone units cannot be operated on UHF channels (R-473; Also see R-50) and so channel crowding on Mobile's VHF channels cannot be relieved unless the number of users on the VHF channels are reduced or Mobile acquires more VHF channels for use with its present subscribers (See R-473).

8. Mobile was the only person to protest the granting of the plaintiff's application.

9. The Commission's Finding No. 9 states as follows:

"9. The exhibits of the applicant clearly indicate that the number of RCC two-way mobile units in the central area of Utah is substantially lower than other intermountain metropolitan areas. Some areas are noted to have a mobile unit for approximately every 2,000 persons in gross

population of the area. The comparable ratio of mobile units in the population in central Utah is less than one unit per 10,000 population" (R-921).

10. A number of the Commission's Findings relating to the public need for additional mobile radio service are set forth verbatim herein. All parentheticals and emphasis added will be noted.

The Commission's Findings:

"4. There is presently being offered to the public in the central Utah area mobile radio service by Mountain Bell Telephone Company (a wire-line company) and by Mobile Radio Telephone Service, Inc. (a non wire-line RCC). Each of these two companies indicated that they had held orders for persons desiring service. Mountain Bell had 15 subscribers on a waiting list and Mobile Radio Telephone Service had 12 subscribers on its waiting list. *Additional public witnesses testified to the need for additional mobile radio service, but they had not placed an order for such service with either of the present utilities because of crowded channel conditions.*" (Parentheticals and emphasis added.) (R-920).

"7. *Mountain Bell Telephone Company* (which has 176 two-way mobile radio telephone units on six channels) *will not accept additional subscribers because the present channels are filled to their capacity. This company has no present plans to install additional channels.*" (Parenthetical and emphasis added.) (R-921).

"5. Neil Goodsell, M.D., who administers a private paging service for a group of physicians (Medic-Call), testified that *he would recommend*

to the 65 or 70 physicians who use the system that they transfer to a common carrier if an acceptable one were available, because of the administrative problems which the physicians have encountered in their private operation." (Parenthetical and emphasis added.) (R-921).

"6. There are approximately 300 private radio mobile systems in the Salt Lake City area. *Many of these have been placed in service because of the overloading problems on the channels of the two carriers above referred to. Several witnesses testified that they would prefer the services of a common carrier were such services adequate.*" (Emphasis added.) (R-921).

11. Mobile's own subscribers cited the need for additional service (R-682-84 (Exhibits 22, 23, 24)).

12. Fifty per cent (50%) of Mountain Bell's subscribers who terminate its mobile radio service do so because of channel crowding (R-362). Mountain Bell has other customers (in addition to those on its waiting list) who would resume service if the channels were less crowded (R-645). One customer presently using Mountain Bell's mobile system testified that he had to wait approximately 5 months in 1971 before there was channel space available so that his telephone could be installed in his automobile (R-379).

13. Plaintiff presently has approximately fifty persons who expect to subscribe to the mobile radio service he proposes to offer (R-652).

14. The Commission found that plaintiff was technically and financially qualified to provide the proposed service (Finding No. 10, R-921).

15. In the hearing Commissioner Hacking acknowledged the public need for the service applied for but apparently failed to comprehend that the FCC will not grant the use of mobile radio channels until the State authority has granted a certificate of convenience and necessity. Commissioner Hacking's comments indicate that he believed the Commission could not act until the plaintiff had obtained channels from the FCC, even though he stated that plaintiff had shown the public need for the proposed service.

(R-532) "COMMISSIONER HACKING: Well—but, then you get to this situation — and I think maybe we've somewhat the same situation right here — *there's a growing public need for this type of service, and it's to a degree growing by leaps and bounds. Nobody can fully serve that need unless — no single party, and maybe no combination of parties can serve that need unless the Federal Communications gives them permission, licensed channels.*

So, you get in a situation where you've got the hen or the egg — which come first here, the hen or the egg, and what will the state commission do in the meantime when they're trying to find out whether the egg is going to be coming forth or the chicken — which is going to come first?" (Emphasis added.)

(R-534) "COMMISSIONER HACKING: *Well, now, you've got the same doggoned thing here — an*

applicant for a radio common carrier certificate can come in and show a need — I don't think it's difficult in this day and age for any applicant to show a pretty strong public need for this type of service. He can also show — may be able to show financial ability, but he can't show that he has those air channels to perform the service . . . and he has got to get the license from somebody else to do that.

So, that's the kind of thing we're confronted with here, isn't it?" (Emphasis added.)

16. Harold Mordkofsky, Washington, D. C., the only expert witness who testified on FCC matters, stated that *the FCC will not grant an applicant a license for mobile radio channels in states where the mobile radio business is regulated by state authority unless such applicant has first obtained a certificate of authority from the particular State to operate a mobile radio business* (R-533).

17. Amos R. Jackson (Jackson) who represented the Commission as its expert in plaintiff's hearing is a principal in and the engineer for Intermountain Engineers Incorporated (Intermountain) (R-432-33) which furnished services to Mobile within a year prior to the plaintiff's hearing before the Commission (R-434; See R-418-19).

18. Jackson and Telpower Services, Incorporated (Telpower) assisted Mobile in the preparation of Exhibits used before the Commission in the hearing (R-390-91).

19. Jackson's teenage children are employees of Telpower (R-435). Telpower was providing management ser-

vices to Mobile at the time of plaintiff's hearing before the Commission (R-416).

20. The offices of Intermountain, Telpower and Jackson were at the same address and all had the same telephone number (R-387-88).

21. Commissioner Hacking stated that Jackson was not an expert on mobile radio (R-445). Jackson does not have a radio license from the FCC (R-433).

22. Jackson is not an attorney (R-433) but advised the Commission on legal and technical matters in regard to mobile radio (R-440-42). Jackson also advised the Commission about the qualifications of RCC applicants (R-439-41; See R-453-55).

23. Jackson was charged by the Commission with inspecting the facilities and operation of RCC's and reporting to the Commission but admitted that he had never personally inspected the facilities or operation of Mobile (R-460-61).

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION'S DENIAL OF PLAINTIFF'S APPLICATION IS UNLAWFUL AND UNREASONABLE BECAUSE IT IS CONTRARY TO THE COMMISSION'S OWN FINDINGS OF GENERAL AND SPECIFIC FACTS.

After reading the Commission's Findings 4 through 10 acknowledging the clear public need for additional mobile radio service in central Utah and acknowledging plaintiff's qualifications to furnish the same, it is difficult not to be astounded by the Commission's Conclusion that to grant plaintiff's application would be "clearly against the public interest". The Commission's Conclusion is especially baffling in light of Commissioner Hacking's comments that there is a great public need for additional mobile radio service and ". . . that no single party, and maybe no combination of parties can serve that need . . ." (See R-532-34).

In spite of the clear public need for additional mobile radio service and even though Mobile obviously was not fulfilling that need, the Commission's primary concern in its later Findings seemed to be to protect Mobile. The Commission found that Mobile had been granted 2 UHF channels from the FCC prior to June, 1970 but had not put the channels into service by June, 1971 (R-922 (Finding No. 13)). Mobile represented to the Commission in June, 1970 that it would have the 2 UHF channels in service "within thirty days or sixty days" (R-110). There was no finding why there was such a long delay in implementing service on the UHF channels. The Commission made no finding when said UHF channels would be put into operation by Mobile or how much such operation could or would relieve present crowding and meet the acknowledged public need.

The Commission stated in Finding 20b (R-924) that "the granting of all or some of these channels [to Mobile] will greatly relieve the present congestion . . ." That Finding illustrates the Commission's failure to understand the technical operation of mobile radio service. Mobile has had 2 VHF channels in operation since 1966 and was granted 2 UHF channels in 1970. Because of the design differences required for the separate frequency bands, two-way mobile telephone units used on VHF channels cannot be used on UHF channels (See R-473). Mobile's channel crowding cannot be relieved on the 2 VHF channels unless Mobile reduces the number of users on those channels. With the proper equipment Mobile could transfer some of its VHF subscribers to the UHF channels but that would reduce the space available for new subscribers to the UHF channels. The Commission made no other Finding that the admitted public need in the central area of Utah could be supplied from any other source since Finding No. 7 (R-921) states that Mountain Bell does not intend to obtain more channels to help fulfill the public need.

In its Finding No. 18, the Commission cited as being applicable to its present decision an excerpt from one of its previous orders in a similar case. The Commission stated that:

. . . If there is to be any exclusive obligation and right connected with a certificate of convenience and necessity, it must follow that the holder of the certificate of convenience and necessity must be provided protection from competitive ser-

vice that could seriously dilute the market and precipitate serious economic disruption to long-term investments. . . .

The implication of the Commission's statement is that granting plaintiff's application would "precipitate serious economic disruption to [Mobile's] long-term investments" and "could seriously dilute the [Mobile's] market". The Commission made no finding that Mobile has long-term investments or that serious disruption would result to Mobile or to any one else if plaintiff were granted a certificate. In fact, the Commission had just previously found on May 25, 1971 in another case that all of Mobile's investments were either "short term" or "relatively short term" (Case No. 6359, Finding No. 6). Moreover, the Commission made no finding that Mobile's market would be "seriously diluted" or diluted at all by granting plaintiff's application.

The Commission also stated in Finding No. 18 that the "measure of such adequacy ["to adequately serve the public"] would be the extent to which the holder [Mobile] keeps abreast of current technological advances within the industry." That statement is incredible. It would seem without question that "adequacy" would have to be determined principally by measuring the total amount of available mobile radio service against the public's needs at a given time. It is submitted that if those who desired mobile radio service were given a choice whether to have "current technological advances" such as pushbutton telephones, they would choose to have dial

telephones rather than no telephone service at all as is presently the situation.

The Commission's reliance on *Eck Miller Transfer Co. v. Armes*, 269 S. W. 2d 287 (Ky. 1954) in support of its Conclusion is misplaced. The facts in this case clearly show a substantial deficiency of service facilities. Because the Commission's own Findings show there is a large and expanding market in which the available mobile radio service is grossly inadequate, the *Eck Miller* citation by the Commission actually supports plaintiff's position that Mobile has been and is unable to render adequate service. The Commission should not be allowed to assume gratuitously that Mobile can fulfill the public need.

It is submitted that the Conclusion of the Commission denying plaintiff's application is utterly inconsistent with the Commission's own Findings and should be reversed.

POINT II.

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION UNLAWFULLY APPLIED THE TERM "DUPLICATION OF SERVICE" TO THE NON WIRE-LINE MOBILE TELEPHONE BUSINESS WHEN IT DENIED PLAINTIFF'S APPLICATION.

Finding No. 18 states that "This Commission previously denied a similar application for duplication of ser-

vice . . .” The Commission’s statement assumes that two companies in the same utility area are automatically duplicating service if they both offer the same commodity to the public. That assumption is not correct in the non wire-line RCC mobile telephone business.

The term “duplication of service” as used in public utility law originally meant the duplication of very expensive capital investments by two separate companies and did not merely indicate that where two companies offered the same commodity there was capacity in excess of the needs of the public. See *Kentucky Utilities Company, et al. v. Public Service Commission, et al.*, 252 S. W. 2d 885 (Ky. 1952).

The history of public utility law shows how the concept of “duplication” developed, and why it is especially inapplicable to the non wire-line mobile telephone business where there is a clear public need in excess of available service. As cities and urban areas developed in the United States, many private companies entered the business of supplying the populace in those areas with such life-sustaining commodities as electricity, gas for heating, culinary water, and telephone communications. To implement their businesses these companies were required to make very large capital investments. They had to purchase land, execute leases and obtain rights of way and easements. In addition, they usually had to finance and construct manufacturing or other generating facilities as well as provide some type of fixed transmission lines such as pipes or wires necessary to transport their products to

the consumers. The products of these companies were utilized by and became essential to nearly every business establishment and residence in the service area.

In some instances more than one company attempted to supply the same essential product to consumers in the same locality. This usually caused a duplication of costly investments because two companies then had to build transmission lines and make other investments in fixed facilities in the same community in an attempt to serve essentially the same customers. This often resulted in one or both of the companies losing money, going out of business and thus depriving members of the public of these essential products.

In an effort to protect the public against this grievous loss, national and local governments began (1) to regulate the conditions under which these companies operated, and (2) to establish rules governing the entrance of new companies into the same businesses. The companies which provided these essential life-sustaining products became known as "public utilities", and the rules of public convenience and necessity were developed. Such companies as Mountain Fuel Supply, Utah Power & Light and Mountain Bell are examples of the traditional public utility.

As time has passed, however, the scope of "public utilities" has been enlarged and many other businesses have been included under the original definition. Consequently, the regulatory agencies have often been burdened to apply the original concepts to numerous new

businesses which, in many instances, have very few of the attributes of the historic "public utility". These businesses have in some cases accidentally become public utilities by the technical language of statutory law. They are in reality pseudo public utilities and should be legally recognized as such.

Even though the historic public utility was often made an absolute monopoly to protect the public in a given area, it was soon discovered that the public interest did not require that all statutory public utilities needed to be monopolies. Utah has recognized this development. In *Pritchard Transfer, Inc. v. W. D. Hatch Co.*, 21 Utah 2nd 106, 441 P. 2d 135 (1968), this Court held that even where there has been a substantial capital investment in equipment such as semi-trucks and trailers the Public Service Commission is not required to maintain a monopolistic position for the existing carrier. Also see *Union Pacific Railway Co. v. Public Service Commission*, 103 Utah 459, 135 P. 2d 915 (1943), wherein this Court stated,

The discretionary power granted the Commission by the act, to grant or withhold certificates, negates the idea that it was intended to grant and maintain a monopoly in any field. The fact that the act provides that the Commission may grant a certificate when it determines that public convenience and necessity requires such services recognizes that regulated competition is as much within the provisions of the act as is regulated monopoly. In the exercise of its powers to grant or withhold certificates of convenience and necessity, questions of impairment of vested or property

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