1972

David R. Williams Dba Industrial Communications v. Public Service Commission of Utah, Hal S. Bennett Frank Warner And Eugene S. Lambert, Commissioners of the Public Service Commission of Utah : Brief of Defendants

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FINDINGS AND ORDERS OF THE UTAH PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ARE PRESUMED VALID AND MUST BE UPHELD ON APPEAL, UNLESS IT IS DETERMINED THAT THE COMMISSION ACTED ARBITRARILY, CAPRICIOUSLY, OR UNREASONABLY.

Utah Code Annotated, Section 54-7-16 (1953), grants to this Court the power to review, on appeal through a Writ of Certiorari, all findings and orders of the Utah Public Ser-

vice Commission, with the exception that “[T]he findings and conclusions of the commission on questions of facts shall be final and not subject to review. Such questions of fact shall include ultimate facts and the findings and conclusions of the commission on reasonableness and discrimination.”

Pursuant to this section, this Court has given wide latitude to the Public Service Commission in exercising its statutory authority. In *Utah Gas Service Co. v. Mountain Fuel Supply Co. and Public Service Commission*, 18 Utah 2d 310, 422 P.2d 530 (1967), the Court in awarding an exclusive franchise to a gas company to furnish natural gas service to a municipality on the basis that evidence presented in the hearing, indicating that the company had built a line within one mile of town, was sufficient to sustain the Public Service Commission’s findings, stated:

“Under our law, the Public Service Commission is charged with the responsibility of granting franchises and regulating such utilities in the public interest. It is *necessarily* endowed with considerable latitude of discretion to enable it to accomplish that purpose.” 18 Utah 2d, at 313. (Emphasis added.)

This Court has further determined that the findings and conclusions resulting from the Public Service Commission’s judicially encouraged “wide latitude” are clothed with verity and must be examined in the light most favorable to the Commission.

In a more recent case, *Armored Motors Service v. Public Service Commission*, 23 Utah 2d 418, 464 P.2d 582 (1970), this doctrine is clearly announced. This Court stated, in upholding a Public Service Commission decision that the author-

ity of a common motor carrier delivery service be enlarged in a particular area:

“However . . . it must be realized that the legislature has given the commission the responsibility for the overall planning and regulation of certain public services because that is the purpose for which the commission was established and functions — it is assumed to have specialized knowledge and expertise in that field. Consequently it is accorded comparatively broad prerogatives in carrying on investigations and making determinations in the discharge of its duties. For these reasons its findings and orders are endowed with presumptions of verity; and upon appeal to this court, we assume that the commission believed those aspects of the evidence which support its findings and we review the record in the light most favorable to them.” 23 Utah 2d at 420-21.

This Court has consistently and uniformly adopted this policy, and in practice has set aside Commission orders only if the Commission acts outside of its authority or in any unreasonable, arbitrary or capricious manner. This solid precedent was established in *Goodrich v. Public Service Commission*, 114 Utah 296, 198 P.2d 995 (1948), and followed in virtually all succeeding cases dealing with this problem. A more recent expression of the Court’s intent is found in *Uintah Freightways v. Public Service Commission*, 15 Utah 2d 221, 390 P.2d (1964), involving an action to review a Public Service Commission’s Order directing suspension of a tariff published by a common carrier. In upholding its decision, this Court said:

“Where a Public Service Commission has acted within the scope of its authority, its order will be upheld if it has *any substantial foundation in the evi*

dence and is not unreasonable, [or] arbitrary or capricious." 15 Utah 2d at 223-24. (Emphasis added.)

It is evident from these judicial fiats that this Court, in reviewing Public Service Commission decisions, has evolved a two-fold concern: (1) whether the Commission acted within the scope of its statutory authority, and (2) whether its actions are capricious, arbitrary or unreasonable. While the former is determined by reviewing the applicable statutes, and such authority is not challenged in this case, the latter has been clarified by case law decisions and will not be found to be unreasonable, arbitrary or capricious if there is *any* factual evidence to support the finding.

In *Salt Lake Transfer Company v. Public Service Commission*, 11 Utah 2d 121, 355 P.2d 706 (1960), this Court, in sustaining a Commission Order amending a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity increasing the authority of a common carrier to render further service, held that:

"We will not disturb the findings of the commission if supported by substantial evidence and are reasonable in view of the evidence . . . [R]ealizing the limits of this court to review the orders of the commission, nevertheless, if in relation to the facts before it, if the commission acts in an arbitrary and capricious manner, the order is without authority and must be set aside.

"Whatever the minimum quality and quantity of evidence necessary to justify administrative action, *orders issued in complete absence of factual support are clearly arbitrary, capricious, and void.*" 11 Utah 2d at 124, 127. (Emphasis added.)

The clearest judicial expression on this point is found in *Utah Gas Service Company v. Mountain Fuel Supply*, *supra*, where this Court concluded that:

“When the Commission, in performing its duties has given consideration to pertinent facts and has made its findings and decision, they are endowed with a presumption of validity and correctness. In accordance with the recognized prerogatives of the trier of the facts, on appeal the evidence is viewed in the light most favorable to sustaining them; and the decision *will not be reversed unless when the evidence is so viewed, there is no reasonable basis to support the Commission's action, so that it thus appears to be capricious and arbitrary*, a situation which is not shown to exist here.” 18 Utah 2d at 315. (Emphasis added.)

These two cases demonstrate that the Court is concerned with the existence of competent evidence and a reasonable decision made therefrom. If these are present, arbitrariness and capriciousness are not.

Therefore, defendant respectfully submits that this Court has uniformly and consistently given a wide latitude of discretion to the Public Service Commission and a presumption of verity to its findings. In clear, unambiguous language, this Court has determined that a Public Service Commission decision will be overturned only if deemed unreasonable, arbitrary or capricious. In applying this principle, the courts have looked to two areas: (1) whether the Commission acted within its statutory authority, and (2) whether the conclusion reached was reasonable from the evidence presented. These are the two areas which this Court must now examine in confronting the problem at bar.

POINT II

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ACTED WITHIN ITS SCOPE OF AUTHORITY IN HEARING PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR A CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY.

The Commission's authority to act in this case has been impliedly challenged by innuendos raised in the plaintiff's Brief. They have indicated that a two-way mobile radio dispatching service can be considered as a "quasi-utility", and, thus, not subject to the complete control of the Public Service Commission. This analysis is statutorily incorrect. The tools to act in this area have been clearly and unambiguously given to the Commission by State statutory law. Utah Code Annotated, §54-4-25, (as amended 1965), declares that:

"No railroad corporation, street railroad corporation, aerial bucket tramway corporation, gas corporation, electric corporation, *telephone corporation*, telegraph corporation, heat corporation, automobile corporation, water corporation or sewage corporation shall henceforth establish, or begin construction or operation of a railroad, street railroad, aerial bucket tramway, line, route, plant or system, or of any extension of such railroad, street railroad, aerial bucket tramway, line, route, plant or system, without having first obtained from the commission a certificate that present or future public convenience and necessity does or will require such construction;" (Emphasis added.)

The plaintiff's anticipated service, two-way mobile radio-telephone dispatching, is included in this definition as a "telephone corporation." Utah Code Annotated, §54-2-1(22) (1953) defines a telephone corporation as:

“ . . . every corporation and person, their lessees, trustees and receivers or trustees appointed by any court whatsoever, owning, controlling, operating or managing any telephone line for public service within this state.”

A telephone line is defined in section 54-2-1 (21) as:

“ . . . all conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cable, instruments and appliances, and all other real estate and fixtures and personal property owned, controlled, operated or managed in connection with or to facilitate communication by telephone whether such communication is had *with or without the use of transmission wires.*” (Emphasis added.)

Clearly plaintiff's service is a telephone communication without the use of transmission wires; thus, it is within the scope of the Public Service Commission's authority to grant Certificates of Convenience and Necessity.

Furthermore, plaintiff admits in his Brief (p. 17) that: “ . . . non wire-line R.C.C.'s are technically included as public utilities by the [Utah] statute.”

The Commission has previously acted under this authority in granting Certificate #1504 (1964) to plaintiff and #1419 (1962) to the protestant.

The Court should take careful note of its recent decision in *Medic-Call, Inc. v. Public Service Commission*, 24 Utah 2d 273, 470 P.2d 258 (1970). In holding that an “answering service” used only by physicians (a telephone receiver “beep call”) was not a utility, this Court accepted the C.J.S. test of what constitutes a public service, regulatable by a Public Ser-

vice Commission. As defined in 73 C.J.S., Public Utilities, §2, that test is:

“ . . . whether or not such person holds himself out, expressly or impliedly, as engaged in the business of supplying his product or service to the public, as a class, or to any limited portion of it, as contradistinguished from holding himself out as serving or ready to serve only particular individuals.” 24 Utah 2d at 275.

The testimony of the plaintiff in the record of the Public Service Commission hearing clearly demonstrates that he envisions his service as one to the public as a class.

Therefore, defendant respectfully submits that statutory authority, previous practice, and recent case law conclusively demonstrate that the Public Service Commission acted within its authority in hearing plaintiff's request for a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity.

POINT III

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION'S CONCLUSION DENYING PLAINTIFF'S APPLICATION WAS REASONABLY DRAWN FROM THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED.

In reviewing applications for Certificates of Convenience and Necessity which provide for services similar in nature to those presently serving a particular area, the Public Service Commission has adopted the position that the applicant must demonstrate the following:

- (1) a public need for his service

- (2) a substantial inadequacy of existing service to meet the need
- (3) that the inadequacy must be due either to a substantial deficiency of service facilities, beyond what could be supplied by normal improvements in the ordinary course of business, or to indifference, poor management or disregard of the rights of the customer persisting over such a period of time as to establish an inability or unwillingness to render adequate service.
- (4) that he has the ability to provide service, in an economically feasible manner.

Compelling authority for these criteria is found in *Eckmiller Transfer Company v. Armes*, 269 S.W. 2d 287 (Ky. 1954); *Ferguson-Steere Motor Company v. New Mexico State Corporation Commission*, 21 PUR 3d 285 (1957); *Re Harper*, 42 PUR 3d 430 (1962), and in 41 PUR Digest 2d, Monopoly and Competition, 3376.

It is necessary, therefore, to review the record of the Public Service Commission's hearing on plaintiff's application in light of the above rationale. This examination will conclusively demonstrate that the decision rendered by the Public Service Commission was reasonable from the evidence presented.

The record indicates that the plaintiff tried to show, through his witnesses that there was a "need" which was not being fulfilled by the predominant R.C.C. carrier (the protestant). Plaintiff cited testimony from Charles Goff, his witness, who testified that he needed additional radio service in his business. An examination of the record reflects that Mr. Goff had used Mountain Bell's telephone service and had found it to be congested (T. 369). When asked on cross-examination

if he would be interested in a service less congested than Mountain Bell's, Mr. Goff replied, "Certainly." (T. 373). Mr. Goff indicated he had never had any contact personally with Mobile Radio Telephone Service, Inc., (the protestant) and had not made personal inquiry into its operation (T. 370-373). Therefore, Mr. Goff had not explored protestant's ability to fulfill his "need".

Neil W. Goodsell, M.D., was called to testify on behalf of the plaintiff and indicated that he administered a private radio service for a group of physicians. The service is operated by a beeper-type system, which is a one-way paging unit. On cross-examination, Dr. Goodsell indicated that he had been contacted shortly after the inception and organization of his Medi-Call group by the protestant and had indicated that it was too late for his group to use the protestant's services, as his group was already in operation. However, he did indicate that now if any other utility offered him a comparable service, he would be interested in considering that service (T. 165). He stated that he had only made limited personal inquiry as to the services available to him by the protestant, and, therefore, was not aware of protestant's ability to fulfill his "need". Dr. Goodsell indicated that he too had complaints about his service from other doctors (T. 171).

Ken Isaacson testified on behalf of the plaintiff that from 8:00 a.m., until approximately 3:30 p.m. he received *terrific* service from the protestant (T. 148), and that his problems came during the peak hours when congestion was greatest (Emphasis added.)

The plaintiff stated that he had approximately fifty people who might be interested in his service but, also, indicated that none of them had given a firm commitment to subscribe (T. 652). In essence, there were "interested" parties, but any business could get fifty people to say they were interested in its services without making any firm commitments.

The testimony of Michael Fullmer was distorted as Mr. Fullmer abused the service and helped create the very congestion he claimed to be the biggest problem with protestant's service. Mr. Fullmer indicated that he had examined Mountain Bell's service and found the channel congestion to be approximately the same (T. 548). Mr. Fullmer further testified that he felt the overcrowding of the channels was the great problem he had with protestant's service (T. 551).

Barton North of Mountain Bell testified that all of Mountain Bell's channels were overloaded and crowded, but that Mountain Bell had filed no present applications for additional channels, although there were available channels open to Mountain Bell (T. 646). *He further indicated that during the years 1968, 1969 and 1967 there were no held orders; and that, in fact, in 1970, there were five less units than in 1968* (T. 640). (Emphasis added.) He testified that since 1968, Mountain Bell had experienced fewer held orders than in prior years (T. 362). Mr. North said that through his studies he had found that at least fifty percent of the customers who disconnected were dissatisfied with the congested condition of the channels and their inability to obtain access to the channels (T. 362). Mr. North conducted surveys of the metropolitan area of Salt Lake and *found that there was not an immediate demand for additional services*. He stated that the records for the past three

years showed a stabilizing effect on the number of customers Mountain Bell had. There were no additional requests for service and no appreciable difference in the number of subscribers for the previous two years (T. 363). (Emphasis added.)

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